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8" CENTURY TO 16™ CENTURY

There being no major land routes in East Africa, communication was
guaranteed by the Swahili people, who dominated navigation on the
rivers and the coast. Trading posts and warehouses sprang up along
the coast, some being fortified, whether sultanates or sheikdoms, such
as Mogadishu, Lamu, Melinde, Mombassa, Pemba, Zanzibar and,
especially, Quiloa, which controlled the gold, ivory and slave tracle.
Further south, there were the sheikdoms of Mozambique, Angoche,
Quelimane and Sofala.

The Island of Mozambigue sheikdom was founded by Hassani and
Moussa MBiki (which is possibly where “Mozambigue” comes from),
around the 11% century. Up until 1500, it had both a fixed and fluctuat-
ing population; the two being mainly made up of Arab merchants and
mariners, with a very sparse African presence.

The second phase of the great Indian voyages began in 1498, with the
arrival of the Portuguese sailor, Vasco da Gama, who established, with
the help of an Arab pilot, the direct connection between East Africa
and India. On this first voyage he called at Cabaceira Pequena, in sight
of the Island of Mozambigue.

The 16™ and the first half of the 17" century
was the period of Portuguese domination.
Various strategic sites controlled the Indian
Ocean, such as the fortresses of Mozam-
bigue (1507) and Mombassa (1508), those
of Ormuz (1515) and Diu (1533) and that of
Goa (1510; since 1530, the capital of the
Portuguese State of India, governed by a
Viceroy), and of Malacca (1511).

The choice of the Island as the main Portu-
guese base was made in 1507 with the importance of its port being
decisive. If the ships leaving Lisbon were late, they would miss the
summer monsocn winds, which meant they could not reach India and
would have to winter in Mossuril Bay (defended by the Island) for long
months, until the approach of summer and the winds changed.
Administrated by Goa, Mozambigue served as a supply and repair
port of call for Portuguese ships on the India run, as well as a place
for trade (Indian ships traded textiles and spices there for gold and
ivory). It was also the base for the fleet which protected the extensive,
Portuguese controlled coast. The Island centralised the trade from
and to Ibo Island, Quelimane, Sofala, Inhambane, as well as Lourengo
Marques (Maputo), founded in 1544 due to the region’s wealth in ivory,
a highly valued product in India. Portugal, however, had pushed the
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Arab presence back to south of the Island, apart from the Angoche
archipelago, and possessed variocus northern towns, controlling the
coast until Melinde and Lamu.

The Portuguese settlement on the Island brought inevitable problems
with the inhabitants, and there were disturbances in Mossuril and the
Cabaceiras. The sheikdom therefore was transferred to Sancul and
later, in 1515, a new one was created in Quitangonha. In 1508, the
main Muslim inhabitants were white Moors, from Aden and Ormuz,
and the mixture with the population from the continent, begun by this
group, increased through the Portuguese.

The first fortification, the Torre Velha (or "Old Tower’) was built in the
middle of the Island, followed by a bulwark at the northern end, where
the chapel, N.* Sr® do Baluarte (bulwark) was built in 1522, with
manueline vaulting. The developments in Turkish artillery had rendered
such means of defence obsolete and led King Joao il to begin the
construction of the large S. Sebastiéio Fortress, whose cistern could
hold 2 000 barrels of water. The project got underway in 1558,
designed by Miguel de Aruda, following the suggestions of the
Viceroy of India, Jodo de Castro, but the garrison was only received in
1583. Dominating the channel and giving access to the haven
in Mossuril Bay, it came to be the key to thwarting future invasion
attempts.

In 1570, the Muslim settlement was destroyed and replaced by the Por-
tuguese, who arranged their community around Torre Velha. The Moors
then settled on the site of the granary. Each community had its different
temple whose very existence says much about the Island’s multicul-
tural character. The Europeans were at the top of the hierarchy, followed
by the Christian Goans. There were also Indian Muslims who came
from British India. Various inhabitants ]
glready had gardens and palm groves
growing on the continent.

In 1593, the customs house and the
charitable organisation, Santa Casa
da Misericérdia were founded, the
latter serving as Town Hall until 1763.
Camdes, Portugal's greatest poet,
lived here between 1567 and 1569.
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with Diu. The monopoly was a significant factor in the decline of the
Island’s economy, and this period continued until the first half of the
18" century.

A new mercantile cycle began, especially as regards slaves. 1721 saw
the start of regular trade with the French islands in the Indian Ocean
and, in 1728, with Brazil. Nevertheless, the Island's difficull situation
continued and, in 1752, the Marqués de Pombal, the Portuguese
Prime Minister, decided to institute a Mozambican government,
replacing direct rule from Goa, although the measure met with strong
Goan resistance. The General Port Authority of the State of Mozam-
bique was then created. Different departments of the new administra-
lion were set up, a new customs house with a wharf was built early in
that year, and trade was liberalized in 1755, ending the monopolies.
With the new laws of citizenship in 1762, which opened the Island to
all Christians, Goans or mixed race, the Island of Mozambigue recov-
ered ils prosperity and became a tlown in 1763, The free trade for the
Portuguese ships (1761) and the enormous increase in the slave trade,
which was bigger than that of gold or ivory, especially to Brazil, created
the Mozambique-Lisbon-S. Salvador da Baia triangle.

In the second half of the 18" century, the Island traffic was exceeded
by Sofala, Quelimane and Ibo, the “slave ports”, The destinations of
the slaves were the Mascarene islands, Madagascar, Zanzibar, the
Persian Gulf, Brazil and Cuba. Slave traffic increased after the liberali-
zation, in 1787, of arms sales on the continent, During the final years
of the century, there was an increasingly intimate relationship with
Brazil, whose ship owner and merchant bourgeoisie had settled on the
Island and in India.

From the end of the 18™ to the early 19% century, there was tremen-
dous growth, with the settlement developing significantly. The town
received city status in 1818. This was where the Portuguese, the
Indian Christians and Guzerate Muslims lived, whilst the Luso-Africans
and Indo-Portuguese lived in Mussoeril and the Cabaceiras. There was
a clear expansionist policy for the factories on the continent, with more
territory being won for the Crown.

Hospital

Stone-built Town
(street from the second half
of the 18" century)

Sporting Club of Mozambique

Twoviews ©
of Macuti Town

Instability returned in the 18" century, and a new decline was brought
about by the independence of Brazil in 1822. The last slave ship with
Brazil as destination set off in 1831. Cotton and coffee plantations,
however, were now moare impartant activities on the continent.

Mew, profound alteration came shorlly after, with the triumph of liberal-
isrm in Portugal in 1834: slavery was abolished in 1837, and the traffic
did slow down after 1840. This finally opened the Island up to the
black population.

The island was divided by a line that remains today: to the north of the
Convent and Hospital of 8. Jodo de Deus, the Eurcpean Stone-built
Town and, to the south, the African Macuti Town. This line also
restricted practices: quarries, corals, slaughterhouses, limestone
ovens and wood or coal deposits were only allowed in the south.
The Convenit of 8. Jodo de Deus, however, was demolished in 1877 to
make way for the new hospital, the largest building in town.

In the second half of the 19" century, as was the case with other
colonial powers, Portugal advanced more deeply into the African
continent, and had to deal with local uprisings, The capital was moved
to Lourengo Marques, in 1888, and so the most southerly part of the
colony became the most impeortant, to the detriment of the northern/
central area. A rallway was built from Lourango Marques, in stap with
the great development process of the Transvaal,

In the 20th century, Mossuril Bay ceased to be a rmodern port and the
provincial capital was transferred from the Island to Nampula, 190 km
intand. The railway from Lake Niassa (Malawi) until Lumbo, in Mossuril
Bay, acquired a branchiine to MNacala, whose deep water port was in-
augurated in 1951 and expanded in 1964. It also meant the end of the
Island's impertance in the region, despite the construction, in 19686,
of the bridge that connectled il to the mainland, After the departure
of some of the inhabitants, following independence in 1975, civil war
brought the arrival of refugees some ten years later, leading to a signifi-
cant rise in population and a solid settlement in Macuti.

Peace finally came to Mozambigue in 1992; a year after, the Island was
declared a World Heritage site by UNESCO.



